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.prnfﬂssed that” was not e tha ad submitted the party costs as a
“business” expense to ASP Also, qtated this activity did not include submitting
F‘s wine or related drink expenses nor di cimburse- for same. During

1S Interview tated he was unaware t ad business expensed the party costs

to ASPPA. (Exhibit 13) Neither nor saw anything inappropriate about
Executive and Legislative Branch employees and ERISA-industry lobbyists meeting for the
purpose of “networking.”

Finding

Attorney, Office of Government Ethics, after being briefed on the parties issue,
byist and considered a pmhibited source. She went on to note that
since ave a close personal relagonpship, the gift exception, 5 CFR 2635.204
(b), could apply. Hnwew::r in yiew of the fact that expensed the party to ASPPA, the gift
exception would not apply. said there would be two mitigating circumstances for
Treasury to consider if the Depariment decided to take administrative action
reimbursed ASPPA for the two parties initially expensed t SPPA; and (2)
assertion that he believed ad paid for these parties usin“wn personal funds.
32)

2. Travel Related Gifts from 501 (c) (3) Entity

The investigation of Hs 501 (c) (3) travel centered around various Irips_ncrk
at the expense of ASPPA as_a puest speaker for their conferences. This information was
discovered during a review of s travel records. Under certain conditions, government
employees are authorized to travel at the expense of 501 (c) (3) type non-profit entities.

The Process

The Delegation of Authority to Accept Payment from Non-Federal Sources for Travel Expenses,
Treasury Directive 12-24, paragraph 4 b., requires all 501 (c) (3) travel to be authorized in
advance on a case-by-case basis. (Exhibit 33) If the employee is being directly reimbursed by
the 501 (c) (3) organization no government travel voucher is required.

In this case, however, the ASPPA reimburses government employees for travel after they submit
an ASPPA travel voucher. Although we found ad approved government travel
authorizations which documented he had obtained permi from management to participgte
ASPPA events l&
d then

" did not submit ASPPA travel vouchers because we found tha
had, in fact, paid for s meals, travel, lodging, and entertainment. ./uul
submit these costs and receive reimbursement from ASPPA.
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Instances of -s 501 (c) (3) Travel

A Treasury OIG review of s government travel authorizations disclosed eight
approved travel authorizations for 501 (c) (3) travel paid for by ASPPA during 2001 through

2003. (Exhibit 34 and 38) It was determined that cancelled one trip but did travel to
seven other ASPPA conferences to participate as a speaker. (Exhibit 35#‘3 ASPPA

el expenses w id_for h}**nd subsequently expensed as charges to ASPPA by
“{Exhihit Sﬁ}m did not file an ASPPA travel voucher, as was required by ASPPA
of other gov ent travelers who spoke at ASPPA conferences, such as s
subordinate, % the former Deputy Benefits Tax Counsel, Office of Tax Policy,
Department of the Treasury. approved s and four other subordinates’ travel
authorizations for 501 (c) (3) travel. (Exhibit 36 and

Special Agent’s Note: This indicatems awareness of the requirement to obtain
an approved travel authorizations for disclose 501 (c) (3) travel.

A review at‘F’s 501 (c) (3) travel authorizations (Exhibit 34 and 38), and ASPPA
“Instructions for Completing Reimbursement Request” (Exhibit 36) disclosed that, during the
seven trips, inappropriately accepted gifts from ASPPA while participating at their
conferences. € gifts totaled $5,266 from ASPPA and were in the form of meals, travel,
dging, and entertainment in excess of standard ASPPA reimbursements. (Exhibits 35 & 38)
acknowledged that he accepted meals, travel, lodging, and entertainment fro

in excess of standard ASPPA reimbursements, but denied they were gifts as he considered them
part of the authorized travel. (Exhibit 35)

Special Agent’s Note: This obscured, if not concealed, - gifts tqs the

expenses were not processed in the same manner as other government employee travel
reimbursements. As such,q travel was not properly recorded in the ASPPA
accounting system, allowing costs in excess of standard ASPPA reimbursements to be
paid. Therefore, ASPPA was served with G Subpoenas on December 23, 2003, and on
September 24, 2004, (specifically for government travel). ASPPA certified compliance
with the IG subpoenas on February 5, 2005. During these 14 months, based on our
review of various ASPPA produced travel documentation, we determined that ASPPA

reimbursed all Treasury employees for the ASPPA spunsired travel except for

It was further determined that paid for ASPPA travel
expenses on ersonal credit card an as subsequently reimbursed by ASPPA
as a business expense.

Finding
mccepted travel and non-travel related gifts from 2001 through 2003 in the amount of
3, in the form of meals, travel, lodging, and entertainment which were provided to him in

excess of the standard amounts ASPPA reimburses other government employees.
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S :tions appear to have been in violation of the Standards of Ethical Conduct for
Employees of the Executive Branch, 5 CFR 2635.202, Gifts from Outside Sources.

resigned from government service ong | D

3. Standard Form 278 Reporting

Reguirement to File

5 CFR § 2634.202 requires, in general, members of the Senior Executive Service (SES) file an
annual Public Financial Disclosure Report, SF 278.

5 CFR § 2634.904 requires that certain employees (generally GS-15 and below) of the Executive
Branch be designated by the agency or department as confidential filers. Being so designated,
these employees are required to file an annual Confidential Financial Disclosure, OGE Form
450.

as a member of the SES, was required to file an annual Public Financial Disclosure
Statement, SF 278. During 2001 through 2003, signed as “supervisor” for six
subordinates on their Confidential Financial Disclosure Keports (OGE Form 450). A Treasury
OIG review of these reports disclosed that four of these employees listed a total of 20 instances
of Gifts and Travel Reimbursements from Outside Sources on their reports. (Exhibit 37)

Special Agent’s Note: All of which indicatﬂ-s awareness of the requirement to
disclose 501 (c) (3) travel on his financial disclosure statements (SF 278 as an SES) as
well as those of his subordinates (OGE Form 450) which he approved.

Further, Fvas aware of the SF 278 guidance set forth at Part II: Gifts, Reimbursements,
and Travel Expenses which reads, “For you, your spouse and dependent children, report the
source, a brief description, and the value of: (1) gifts (such as tangible items, transportation,
lodging, food, or entertainment) received from one source totaling more than $260; and (2)
travel-related cash reimbursements received from one source totaling more than $260. For
conflicts analysis, it is helpful to indicate a basis for receipt, such as personal friend, agency
approval under 5 U.S.C. § 4111; or other statutory authority, etc. For travel-related gifts and
reimbursements, include travel itinerary, dates, and the nature of expenses provided. Exclude
anything given to you by the U.S. Government; given to your agency in connection with official
travel; received from relatives; received by your spouse or dependent child totally independent of
their relationship to you; or provided as personal hospitality at the donor's residence. Also, for
purposes of aggregating gifts to determine the total value from one source, exclude items worth
$104 or less. See instructions for other exclusions.” (Exhibit 39)

According to Ethics Specialist, Treasury’s Office of General Counsel,
received ethics traiming concerning the acceptance of gifts in 2001 and 2002. The training
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included the following topics: acceptance of travel and related expenses, gifts from outside
sources, gifts between employees, conflict of interest, and standards of conduct. (Exhibit 40)

_EEEEQH_HDJ_C Travel

A review u'.s travel records and his SF 278 Public Financial Disclosure Forms
revealed tha repared, submitted, and received Treasury authorization of travel for all
501 (c) (3) travel, to include ASPPA travel (one of which was cancelled). However.

did not properly disclose 501 (c) (3) sponsored trav? lii calendar years 2001 and 2002 on his

278. It was only during calendar year 2003, when traveled 18 times at the expense of
501 (c) (3) organizations, that he properly disclosed 17 of these trips on his 2003 SF 278 which
was filed in May 2004; seven months after this investigation was initiated. (Exhibit 34, 38 and
39)

Year ngve ;ftf{;rgfe?l Number of Trips Reported on J
the SF 278 b&

=y Authorizations
2001 i SO, SR | |
2002 | 12 0 ]
2003 [ 18 17 (undetermined discrepancy)
Findings
-dmitted receiving ASPPA travel and non-travel benefits but denied they were gifts.
Hﬁd not disclose the 501 (c) (3) travel, nor the amounts he received that were in excess
ot standard ASPPA reimbursements to other government travelers, on his annual Public

Financial Disclosure Form until this investigation was underway. (Exhibit 38)

m conduct violated the Standards of Ethical Conduct for Employees of the Executive
ranch, > UFR 2635.202, Gifts from a Prohibited Source, and 18 USC §1001, False Statements.
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IV. Allegation Fuw*

Criminal

The U.S. Attorney's Office, Washington, DC (USAO-DC) declined to prosecute the misuse of
the Treasury Seal and name since Tre has a remedy available under 31 USC §333. Further,
the USAO-DC declined to p te% on activities related to the two parties because

didn’t know that xpensed the parties to ASPPA. The USAO-DC concluded
that s lack of disclosures in reporting the meals, travel, lodging, and entertainment
from were a technical violation of 18 USC § 1001; however, it was declined for criminal
prosecution becaus ad left his position at Treasury and the $5,266 did not meet their
prosecutorial thresho hermore, the bSAD—DC lined to prosecute the matter

surroundin s release of information to well as m receipt
of gifts from use it was not possible to esta ]Sh a qul ro quo. (Exhibit
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Civil

The Department of Justice, Civil Division, concluded that the case lacked litigative appeal
because of the dollar amount that ailed to report as gifis on his Public Financial
Disclosure Form and, therefore, dech pursue a civil action. (Exhibit 43)

Treasury

The misuse of the Treasury Seal and name has been referred to the Treasury’s Assistant
Secretary for Management and Chief Financial Officer for potential action or remedies available
to the Department under 31 USC § 333.
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10.

11.

12

I3.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

EXHIBITS

Wall Street Journal article concerning Cash Balance Pension Funds, dated September 10,
2003

Wall Street Journal article concerning party held fr:-r-iated September 10,
2003

S - o history
Background on ([ AserA. SN

Synopsis c}f- law expertise on Covington & Burling’s web site

Summary of Cash Balance Pension Plans

Record of Activity on Employee Retirement & Income Security Act of 1974
Decision of United States Court for the Southern District of Illinois

Record of Activity on Amendment offered by Representative Sanders

Congressional Record for the Transportation, Treasury, and Independent Agencies
Appropriations Act 2004

Memorandum of Activity for S RSN d2tcd September 15, 2003

Memorandum of Activity for review ul-’s e-mails, dated January 20, 2004

Memorandum of Activity, sworn statement from —datad February 4,

2004

Memorandum of Activity for Pamela Olson, dated February 13, 2004
Memorandum of Activity for Robert Nichols, dated December 10, 2003
Memorandum of Activity for Robert Nichols, dated July 22, 2004
Memorandum of Activity for James Young, dated September 24, 2003

E-mail from JT Young stating that Treasury “Talking Points” were not formally released
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31

32.

Memorandum of Activity for Gregory Jenner, dated February 18, 2004
Memorandum of Activity for Kenneth Schmalzbach, dated April 20, 2004
Memorandum of Activity for /P dated October 2, 2003, and July 21, 2004

Memorandum of Activity for-dated December 5, 2003

Memorandum of Activity for _dated October 17, 2003

Memorandum of Activity for dated December 5, 2003

Memorandum of Activity for — dated September 10, 2004

Memorandum of Activity for — dated September 19, 2005 and October
17, 2003

Memorandum of Activity fr:-r_ dated September 15, 2003

Memorandum of Activity for -dated November 4, 2004

Memorandum of Activity for -datad November 18, 2003

Memorandum of Activity fo ctober 23, 2003: dated
October 27, 2003; dated October 27, 2003; ated October 24,
IG{}_’-;_ Senate Finance Committee, Minority Staff, dated October 10, 2003;

Gregory Jenner, former Deputy Assistant Secretary Tax Policy, dated September 24,
2003; and i Program Assistant for Benefits Tax Counsel, dated October 24,
2003,

Deposit slip to reimburse ASPA

Memorandum of Activity fr:rr- Office of Government Ethics, dated January
22, 2004

Acceptance of travel payments from cegai exempt entities
Memorandum of Activity for %&'L‘Tﬂbﬁ 1, 2004
Memorandum of Activity for [ N SRS 2 February 14, 2005
Memorandum of Activity for -ated February 9, 2005
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37, Review of Records, dated February 28, 2005

38. Memorandum of Activity for (i NN d2<d May 6, 2005

39, -s Public Financial Disclosure Forms (SF 278) for 2001, 2002, and 2003

40.  Summary of -s ethics training

41. Memorandum of Activity ﬁ::r— dated January 21, 2005

42. United States Attorney’s Office criminal declination, dated May 3, 2005

43. United States Attorney’s Office civil declination, dated July 21, 2005
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